Vishal Chaturvedi & Co
Chartered Accountant

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Petunt Food Processors Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Petunt Food Processors Private Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as of 31 March 2022, and the Statement of Profit and Loss, the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and loss and other
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 39 to the financial statements wherein it is stated that, as of 31 March 2022
the Company’s net worth has eroded and has net working capital deficit of Rs. 35,853.53 thousand.
These conditions indicate existence of a material uncertainty about the Company’s ability to continue
as going concern. However, Bikaji Foods International Limited (the ‘Holding Company’) has confirmed
to provide financial and operational support for at least next twelve months from the date of balance

sheet. In view of the above, the financial statements of the Company have been prepared on going
concern basis.

Our report is not modified in respect of this matter.
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Company’s Board Report, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the wdrk we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

T preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
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error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

¢) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlving transactionsand
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work;
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
cthical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in

“Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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b)

d)

e)

h)

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and

the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act;

In our opinion, matter reported in “Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern” above may
have adverse impact on functioning of the Company.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 01 April 2021 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2022
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements.

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
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whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the

representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year. Accordingly, the
provisions of Section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013, are currently not applicable to
Company.

i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

For Vishal Chaturvedi & Co.
Chartered Accountant
Firm Registration No.: 031179C

) Gl

ishal Chaturvedi
Proprietor
Membership No.: 410058
UDIN: 22410058AQQ0ZZ5097

Place: Greater Noida West
Date: September o2, 2022
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ANNEXURE A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PETUNT FOOD PROCESSORS PRIVATE LIMITED FOR THE
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditor’s Report]

i.

(a)

(b)

(e)

(d)

(e)

ii.

(a)

(b)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment except distinct identification details of each such
asset is maintained.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its
Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in a phased
manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain property, plant and
equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there are no immovable properties in name of the Company. Building
improvements appearing in the financial statements have been developed on leased land.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for
holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder.

The inventory, except goods-in-transit, has been physically verified by the management during the
year. For inward goods-in-transit subsequent evidence of receipts has been linked with inventory
records. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable, and procedures and
coverage as followed by management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on
verification between the physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the
aggregate of each class of inventory.

According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of
¥ 5 crores, in aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on
the basis of security of current assets and hence reporting under Clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.
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iii.

iv.

vii.

(a)

(b)

viil.

(a).

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, Firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships (LLP) or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). Accordingly, provisions stated in Paragraphs 3 (iii) (a) to (f) of the
Order are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, the Company has not either directly or indirectly, granted any loans, made any investment,
provided any guarantee and given any security to which Section 185 or Section 186 would apply.
Accordingly, provisions stated in Paragraph 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable.

. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits

or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public during the year. Accordingly, provisions
stated in Paragraph 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

. The provisions of Sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the Company as the

Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records for any of the products
of the Company. Accordingly, provisions stated in Paragraph 3 (vi) of the Order are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including employees' state insurance and other statutory dues as applicable to it.

The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
of goods and services tax, provident fund, tax deducted at source and tax collected at source.

Income-tax, duty of customs, cess is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, no amounts are payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, service tax,
sales-tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other
statutory dues, at the year end, on account of dispute.

Income-tax, duty of customs, cess is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously
unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
as income during the year.

According to the information and explanation given to us, in respect of inter-corporate deposits / loans
amounting to ¥ 20,000 thousands which are repayable on demand and such inter-corporate deposits /
loans and interest thereon have not been demanded for repayment during the current year. However,
schedules for payment of interest thereon have been stipulated. In respect of other loans, according to
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(b)

(c)

(d

(e)

®

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(c)

xii.

the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of inter-corporate deposits / loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender. The Company has not defaulted on
payment of interest on loans repayable on demand.

According to the information and explanation given to us and examination of records of the Company,
Company has not been declared as a willful defaulter by any financial institution or other lender.

According to the information and explanation given to us and examination of records of the Company
term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanation given to us and examination of records of the Company,
short term loan obtained has not been utilized for long term purpose.

According to the information and explanation given to us and examination of records of the Company,
there are no subsidiary, associate or joint venture of the Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated
in Paragraph 3 (ix)(e) of the Order are not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and examination of records of the Company,
there are no subsidiary, associate or joint venture of the Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated
in Paragraph 3 (ix)(f) of the Order are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated in
Paragraph 3 (x)(a) of the Order are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally). Accordingly, the provisions stated in
paragraph 3 (x)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

During the course of our audit, examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the
Company or on the Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of Section
143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable.
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xiii.

XV.

Xvi.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

xvii.

xviii.

XX.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 188 of the
Act and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards. Based on information and explanation provided to us by the
Company, Section 177 of the Act is not applicable to it.

. In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company does not have an internal audit system

and is not required to have an internal audit system as per provisions of the Act. Accordingly,
provisions stated in Paragraph 3(xiv)(a) and Paragraph 3(xiv)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and
hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1034. Accordingly, Paragraph 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, Paragraph 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, Paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no core investment company
within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and
accordingly reporting under Paragraph 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to ¥31,149.74 thousand during the financial year
covered by our audit. The Company did not incur cash loss in the immediately preceding financial
year.

There has been no resignation of statutory auditor of the Company during the year.

We draw attention to Note 39 to the financial statements wherein it is stated that, as of 31 March 2022
the Company’s net worth has eroded and has net working capital deficit of Rs. 35,853.55 thousand.
These conditions indicate existence of a material uncertainty as at date of this audit report about the

Company’s ability of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

Also, refer “Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern” paragraph in our “Independent Auditor’s
Report” of even date.

The Company has incurred losses during the three immediately preceding financial vears and hence, it
is not required to spend any money under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act. Accordingly,
reporting under Paragraph (xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company for the year.
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xxi. The reporting under Clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone
Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this
report.

For Vishal Chaturvedi & Co
Chartered Accountant
Firm Registration Nqg.: 031179C

Wi
Vishal Caturvedi

Proprietor
Membership No.: 410058
UDIN: 22410058A0Q0ZZ25097

Place: Greater Noida West
Date: September 02, 2022

Address: Flat Jo81, Gulshan Bellina, Sector 16, Greater Noida West - 201318
Pages5ofs5



Vishal Chaturvedi & Co
Chartered Accountant

ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PETUNT FOOD PROCESSORS PRIVATE LIMITED

[Referred to in Paragraph 2(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditor’s Report]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Petunt Food
Processors Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI) (the “Guidance Note”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A Company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in aceordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
operating effectively as of 31 March 2022, based on the internal control with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note.

For Vishal Chaturvedi & Co
Chartered Accountant

e

Vishal Chaturvedi
Proprietor

Membership No.: 410058
UDIN: 22410058AQQ0ZZ5007

Place: Greater Noida West
Date: September 02, 2022
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PETUNT FOOD PROCESSORS PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022
(All amounts in INR thousand, unless stated otherwise)

i As at As at
et Htic o, 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 302,876.68 145,518.60
Right-of-use assets 4 6,172.19 6,601.64
Capital work in progress 3 13,033.57 25,238.30
Other intangible assets 3 04.98 74.40
Financial assets
Others 6 83.00 45,270.09
Non-current tax assets 2,750.88 1,304.49
Other non current assets 7 48,460.80 59,365.61
—_373,471.50 _  283,463.13
Current assets
Inventories 8 31,241.94 5,866.97
Financial assets
Trade receivables 9 5,028.83 6,821.91
Cash and cash equivalents 10 9,598.61 1,209.15
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents 5 = 4,358.40
Others 6 5,235.00 3,282.95
Other current assets 7 23,965.04 9,253.89
75.069.42 30,793.27
Total Assets 448,540.92 314,256.40
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 1 73,780.98 73,780.98
Other equity
Securities premium 12 31,699,601 31,699.61
Retained earnings and others 12 (106,612.10) (67,771.01)
Total Equity (1,131.51) 37.709.58
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 14 272,448.22 136,174.18
Others 16 26,133.50 26,510.09
Provisions 13 959.35 908.33
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 25 L, _
Other non current liabilities 17 39,208.41 37,544.36
Current lsbilities 338,749.48 201,136.96
Financial Liabilities
?:;:“;;fblg 14 38,750.00 16,761.46
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 15 0,100.28 "
- total B ; b 1 ! ,907.04
b ntt: rp;;::tanding Ques of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 15 53,001.63 29,707.80
Others
Other current liabilities 16 4.543.93 14,310.77
Provisions 0 5,261.13 7,571.89
13 76.98 1,150.90
Total Liabilities 20,992.95 75.409.86
Total Equity and Liabilities —449.072.43 _ 276,546.82
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PETUNT FOOD PROCESSORS PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022
(All amounts in INR thousand, unless stated otherwise)

Note No.
Summary of significant aceounting policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached For and on the behalf of Board of Directors of
For Vishal Chaturvedi & Co. Petunt Food Processors Private Limited
Chartered Accountant CIN: U15549KA2017PTC106402

ICAI Fgm Registration No: 031
\lﬂ |

ishal Chattirvedi
Proprietor
Membership No. 410058
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. / Director

‘evr/ DIN: 07572669

Place: Greater Noida West Place: Bengaluru
Date: 02 September 2022 Date: 02 September 2022



PETUNT FOOD PROCESSORS PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in INR thousand, unless stated otherwise)

Particulars Note No.  For the year For the year
91 March 2022 31 March 2021

Revenue from operations 18 220,758.12 126,886.46
Other income 19 7,994.66 46,540.68
Total Income 227,092.78 173.427.14
Expenses
Cost of material consumed 20 133,799-46 50,180.36
Purchase of stock-in-trade 4,106.09 1,370.47
Changes in inventories of traded goods and finished goods 21 939.05 1,428.05
Employee benefit expenses 22 48,338.54 40,549.30
Finance costs 23 15,850.48 17,777.94
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 3&qg 16,638.11 19,545.41
Other expenses 24 47,621.48 42,622.23
Total expenses 267,293.21 173.474.360
(Loss) before tax (39:300.43) (47.22)
Tax expenses 25

Current tax - -
Deferred tax 2 -
(Loss) for the year (39,300.43) (47.22)

Other Comprehensive Income
Ttems that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Re-measurement gains;/ (losses) of defined benefit plans 31 329.15 (234.77)
Income tax effect - =

329.15 (234.77)
Total Other Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) 329.15 (234.77)
Total Comprehensive (Loss) (38.971.28) (281.99)
Basic and diluted (loss) per share (In Rs.) 26 (5.33) (0.01)

Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached For and on the behalf of Board of Directors of
For Vishal Chaturvedi & Co Petunt Food Processors Private Limited
Chartered Accountant CIN: U15549KA2017PTC106402
IC DR istration Ng: 031179C /\

shal Chat hrut Ra‘}gwala
Proprietor . Director Director
Membership No. 410058 DIN: 07572669 DIN: 02841752

Place: Greater Noida West

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 02 September 2022

Date: 02 September 2022



PETUNT FOOD PROCESSORS PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in INR thousand, unless stated otherwise)

A. Equity Share Capital

Equity shares of INR 10 each iceued, subseribed and fully paid For the year For the year
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
As at 1 April 2020 73,780.98 73,780.98
Issue of share capital - -
As at 1 April 2021 73.780.98 73.780.98
Issue of share capital - -
As at 31 March 2022 73.780.98 73,780.98

B. Other Equity
For the vear ended 31 March 2021

Reserves and surplus Total
Securities Retained Share based Others
premium earnings payment
reserve (Parent
Company ESOP)
As at 1 April 2020 - (67,221.63) - (267.39) (67,489.02)
Loss for the year - (47.22) - - (47.22)
- (67,268.85) - (267.39) (67,536.24)
Others
Re-measurement (losses) of defined benefit - - - (234.77) (234.77)
plans
Initial recognition gain on issue of 31,609.61 - - - 31,699.61
Optionally convertible debentures to
holding company
Total others 31,699.61 - - (234.77) 31,464.84
As at 31 March zo21 31,699.61 (67,268.85) - (502.16) (36,071.40)
For the year ended 31 March 2022
Reserves and surplus Total
Securities Retained Share based Others
premium earnings payment
reserve (Parent
Company ESOP)
As at 1 April 2021 31,699.61 (67,268.85) - (502.16) (36,071.40)
Loss for the year - (39,300.43) - - (39,300.43)
31,699.61 (106,569.28) - (502.16) (75,371.83)
Others
Re-mes Y
i 1:1 :Slmsurement (losses) of defined benefit - - - 320.15 320.15
ESOP expense for the year = - . _
Total others = = 1;‘2)'113 e 130.19
As at 31 March 2022 31.699.61 (106,569.28) 130.19 (173.01) !Ziszm‘ﬂz!
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached For and on the behalf of Board of Directors of
For Vishal Chaturvedi & Co Petunt Food Processors Private Limited
Chartered Accountant CIN: U15549KA2017PTC106402

ICAI Firm Registratiga

f'@gﬁt Rangwala Sulabh Bh

Director Director
DIN: 07572669 DIN: 02841752

Place: Greater Noida Wes Place: Bengaluru
Date: 02 September 2022 Date: 02 September 2022



PETUNT FOOD PROCESSORS PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in INR thousand, unless stated otherwise)

Particulars

For the year
31 March zozz2

For the year
31 March 2021

A Cash flows from operating activities
Net (loss) before tax
Adjustments for:

Interest expense

Interest expense on lease liabilities

Interest expense on Optionally convertible debentures
Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Amortisation of Deferred grant income

Interest income on deposits

Liabilities written back other than operating lease liabilities
Options fair valuation (gains), net

Operating lease liabilities written back on modification
Gain on disposal of Property, plant and equipment
Interest income on income tax refund

Balances written off

Provision for doubtful debts

Provision for slow moving inventory

Leave encashment (reversal)/ expense for the year
Employee stock options expense

Gratuity expenses for the year

Operating (loss) before working capital changes

Working capital adjustments:
Movement in trade and other payables
Movement in inventories

Movement in trade receivables, other receivables and prepayments

Gratuity and compensated leaves paid during the year
Cash (used in) from operations
Taxes paid (net of refund including interest on refund)
Net cash (used in) from operating activities

B Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received
Proceed from sale of Property plant and equipment

Purchase of Property plant and equipment other intangible assets (including movement for

capital advances and payable for fixed assets)
Proceeds from other bank deposits, net
Net cash (used in) investing activities

C  Cash flows from financing activities:
Interest paid
Operating lease liabilities paid
Interest on lease liabilities paid
Repayment of Long term borrowings from banks
Proceeds from Long term borrowings from banks
Deferred fees paid
Proceeds from/ (repayment of) short term borrowings from banks, net
Repayment of loan to companies with common directors
Optionally convertible debentures
Grant received
Net cash generated from financing activities
Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (Refer note 10)
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(39,300.43) (47.22)
6,290.17 4,333-41
- 11,925.60
9,560.31 1,518.93
16,638.11 19,545.41
(2,710.24) (256.11)
(226.18) (3,874.17)
(1,539.01) (26,870.68)
(376.59) (1,542.05)
“ (13,258.13)
= (2.10)
, (69.73)
1,006.59 325.77
102.24 699.20
(1,054.08) 4,243.37
(654.69) 938.10
130.19 =
402.82 293.16
(10,830.79) (2,097.24)
27,769.35 (15,449.83)
(24,320.89) (43.51)
(25,317.04) (14,486.91)
(319.81) (152.65)
(33,019.18) (32,230.14)
(1,446.39) (41.52)
(34,465.57) (32,271.66)
882.13 6,940.66
6.66 51.30
(150,208.43) (71,075.71)
49.545.49 16,893.88
(99,774.15) (47,189.87)
(5,935.08) (4,753.07)
- (17,383.10)
= (11,925.60)
(34,677.78) (5,647.72)
170,000.00 2,825.50
(974.27) -
18,514.17 (6,511.52)
(4,297.86) (66,623.62)
- 170,707.00
& 19,885.00
142,629.18 80,572.87
8,389.46 1,111.34
1,209.15 97.81
9,598.61 1,209.15




PETUNT FOOD PROCESSORS PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in INR thousand, unless stated otherwise)
Notes :
1. The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in Ind AS-7, "Statement of Cash Flows".
2. Notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the Cash Flow Statement.
3. Refer note 41 for reconciliation of changes in financial activities.

As per our report of even date attached For and on the behalf of Board of Directors of
For Vishal Chaturvedi & Co Petunt Food Processors Private Limited
Chartered Accountant CIN: U15549KA2017PTC106402

CAI Firm Registratj /\A
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Propri€tor % Director Director
Membership No. 4100854 -1/ DIN: 07572669 DIN: 02841752

Place: Greater Noida West Place: Bengaluru
Date: 02 September 2022 Date: 02 September 2022



PETUNT FOOD PROCESSORS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in INR thousand, unless stated otherwise)

1, Corporate information _ _
Petunt Food Processors Private Limited (the ‘Company’) is a Company domiciled in India, with its registered office situated at

Vasanthanarasapura Industrial Area, Phase III, Kora Hobli, Tumkur, Karnataka - 572138. The Company was incorporated on 14
September 2017 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company is primarily involved in manufacturing, processing,
purchase and sale of snacks food.

These financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Directors on 02 September 2022.

Nice Texcot Trading & Ageney Private Limited used to hold 51.22 % of equity shares of the Company till 2 February 2021 and was its
holding company whose entire shareholding in the Company was transferred to Bikaji Foods International Limited with effect from 3
February 2021. Accordingly, on or after 3 February 2021 the Company was deemed to be a public company as per proviso to Section 2(71)
of the Companies Act, 2z013.

2.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements and statement of compliance of Ind AS [
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read together with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendments

as issued/ notified thereafter (hereinafter referred as ‘Ind AS’).

Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially
adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Basis of measurement )
These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for any other basis explained elsewhere in these financial

statement.
The financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the functional currency of the Company, and all values are rounded to two
decimal places to the nearest thousand (INR '000) except, when indicated otherwise,

2.2 Recent accounting pronouncements

Standards issued but not yet effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, as below.

Ind AS 16, Property Plant and equipment — The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of
Festing, if any, shall not be recognized in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an
item of property, plant, and equipment. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1,
2022. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financial statements.

Ind AS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets — The amendment specifies that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract
comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’, Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (examples would be direct labor, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly ta fulfilling contracts (an
example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract)
The gﬂ'echve date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022, although early adoption is.
permitted. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financial statemex;ts. ' '

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the b

] alance sheet based on current/ non- t classi i
An asset is treated as current when it is: i
- Expecte.d to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading,
- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

;) ecljcs,g or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting

All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

- Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading,

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liabili
¢ ity for at least twelve months th i i
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Bk e

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
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PETUNT FOOD PROCESSORS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in INR thousand, unless stated otherwise)

Based on the nature of business and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current and non- current classification
of assets and liabilities.

Foreign currencies
Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company
operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for
recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the
reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency, which are recorded using rates at the dates of the
initial transactions.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable.

- Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Revenue recognition

Sales of goods and services

Revenues from customer contracts are considered for recognition and measurement when the contract has been approved by the parties,
in writing, to the contract, the parties to the contract are committed to perform their respective obligations under the contract, and the
contract is legally enforceable. Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services (“performance
obligations”) to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company has received or expects to receive in exchange for

these Dr_odu(.:ts or services (“transaction price”). When there is uncertainty as to collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such
uncertainty is resolved.

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, after deduction of any trade discounts, volume rebates and
any taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government such as goods and services tax, etc. Accumulated experience is used to estimate
the provision for such discounts and rebates. Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is highly probable a significant reversal will not
oceur,

In case customers have the contractual right to return goods, an estimate is made for goods that will be returned and a liability is
recognised for this amount using the best estimate based on accumulated experience.

Interest income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is
recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or
to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does
not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.
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PETUNT FOOD PROCESSORS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in INR thousand, unless stated otherwise)

Rental income
Rental/lease income arising from operating leases is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue
in the statement of profit and loss due to its operating nature. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their

nature.

Government grants
Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be

complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the
related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal
amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair value amounts and released to the
statement of profit and loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset.

Taxes

Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax
losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

De_ferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income
or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off tax assets against tax liabilities.

Property, plant and equipment

‘Cap:t.al work in progress and property plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated

:]mpau-fnent losses, if any. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
epreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in

the carrying amount of the pla.nt and e i i 5 air a intenance
quipment as a replacemeut if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other rep: ir and ma
s . .
costs are recognmed m the statement of pl‘Oﬁt and loss as incurred.

An ltem' of property, plant and equigment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference

between thE net dlsposa] proceeds and the carrymg amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
) € t P

Transition to Ind AS
On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with carryi i i 1

_ . rrying value of all of its Property, plant and equipment recognised as
at 01 April 2019 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as deemed cost of the Property, plant and equipment.
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PETUNT FOOD PROCESSORS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in INR thousand, unless stated otherwise)

Depreciation metho ' useful liv residual value ) - ]
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual value, over their estimated useful lives.

The Company has used the following rates to provide depreciation on its property, plant and equipment which are similar as compared to
those prescribed under the Schedule II to the Act:

Plant and machinery: 15 Years

Computers end user devices: 3 years

Electrical installation and equipment: 10 years

Furniture and fittings: 10 years

Office equipment: 5 years

Laboratory Equipment: 10 years )

Building improvement (on leased land): Over the lease period or 30 years, whichever is less.

Individual assets costing Rs. 5,000 or less are fully depreciated in the year of purchase. .

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible asset o . ;
Intangible assets including those acquired by the Company are initially measured at acquisition cost. Such intangible assets are

subsequently stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortisation, ) ) ) .
The Company amortises software and other intangible assets with a finite useful life using the straight-line method aver period of 3 years.

Intangible assets with finite lives are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation year and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each

reporting year.

Leases -
The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term lease:s and Iea;es of low-value
assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the

underlying assets.

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating

leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Company to the

lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance

lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in

respect of the lease. .
i1} 1

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.c., the date the underlying asset is available for

use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any

remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs

mcum?d, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are

depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be
mad.e over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The Iease. payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the year in which
Fhe event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
paymients made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the lease payments or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. ,
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PETUNT FOOD PROCESSORS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in INR thousand, unless stated otherwise)

Short-term leases _
The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of building (i.e., those leases that have a lease

term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments of short-term leases are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows: .

Raw materials and packing materials: cost includes cost of purchase (excluding those subsequently recoverable by the enterprise from th_e
concerned revenue authorities) and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is
determined on first-in first-out basis (FIFO).

Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based
on the normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined on FIFO. ‘

Stores and spare parts are valued at cost. cost includes cost of purchase (excluding those subsequently recoverable by the enl';e.rpnse frcu:n
the concerned revenue authorities) and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is
determined on FIFO. ) ‘

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated

costs necessary to make the sale.

Segment reporting ) ) : ’ L
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker

(CODM).

The board of directors of the Company assesses the financial performance and position of the Company and mak.es sn.'ategic decisions.
The board of directors, which has been identified as being the chief operating decision maker, consists of managing director and other
directors. Refer note 35 for segment information presented.

Finance costs
Borrowing cost includes interest, amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings.

General and Specific borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes
a substantial year of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective asset. All the other
borrowing costs are expensed in the year they occur.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or
when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from

?ther_ assets or group of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assefsmgkvalue in use, the estimelxted future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
szcl::?mrgral:ete::r ?:f::&?:z :)ef :a};:: tu‘net value of money and the risks _speciﬁc to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal,

o en in cf account: If no such transactmn.s can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed bud i i
’ j ) t cale gets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of
the Company’s CGU's to which the individual assets are allocated. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

_For assefs, an assessment is rpade at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment loss.les 1o longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable
a.motfnt. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the
asset’s recoverab!e amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset
fioes _not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of pr:oﬁt and loss. '
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PETUNT FOOD PROCESSORS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in INR thousand, unless stated otherwise)

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provision are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet

date.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate,
the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a

finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events nat wholly within the control of the Company or a
present obligation that arises from past events where it is not either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a

reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

A contingent asset is not recognised unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise. When an inflow of
economic benefits is probable, contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statement.

Decommissioning Liability
Decommissioning costs are provided at the present value o
recognised as part of the cost of the particular asset. The cas

to the decommissioning liability. )
The unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurred and recognised in the statement of profit and loss as a finance cost. The estimated

future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs or in the
discount rate applied are added to or deducted from the cost of the asset.

f expected costs to settle the obligation using estimated cash flows and are
h flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specifie

Retirement and other employee benefits

Provident Fund: Contribution towards provident fund is made to the regulatory authorities, where the Company has no further
obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any further obligations, apart
from the contributions made on a monthly basis which are charged to the statement of profit and loss,

Employee's State Insurance Scheme: Contribution towards employees' state insurance scheme is made to the regulatory authorities,
where the Company .hasl no further obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not
carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis which are charged to the statement of profit and loss.

Gratuity: The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which is unfunded. The cost of providing benefits under the
deﬁnec! ben‘eﬁt plan is determined using the projected unit credit method. Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses are
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which
ti;ey occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. Past service costs are recognised in the statement
o Lz:uoﬁt a_nd loss on the. earlier _of the date of the plan amendment or curtailment and the date that the Company recognises related
;c:mc :tcuntnsg costs.'I"Iet interest is cal.lculatcd by applyil}g the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability. The Company recognises
S 0sts comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non- routine settlements; and net
Interest expense or income in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss. ' !

Compensated absences: Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits in form of compensated absences are

measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outfl i i
i ki ows expected to be made by the Company in respect of services provided

.Share based Payment: Equity shares-based payments granted to emplo is i i i
increase in equity, over the period that the emp)lrc');ee ungconditionally ll?)ec)::; I:ni?;:gl;::gea::;;.mployee i i s
The emp]nyee ‘of' the Company receive remuneration in form of shares-based payment from the Parent Company, Bikaji Foods
.III';lterEatlfma.l Limited, wl_nereby employee render services as consideration for equity instruments, over a defined vestini; pi:::“iod. e
ref:re r?;ltz,l:;f:?ain:?ag is g?ltlﬁrally vested in a graded manner over Fhe vesting period. Equity instruments granted are measured by
st i ue o the Ifr‘llstmment as at tl"ne date of grant using appropriate valuation model. The fair value determined at the
sl telche over the future vestmg. period of the respective tranches of such grants in graded manner. The Expenses is
gnised in the Statement of Profit and Loss with a corresponding increase in other reserve, a component of other equity.
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PETUNT FOOD PROCESSORS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in INR thousand, unless stated otherwise)

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value. However, in the case of financial assets designated as FVTPL transactions costs are
not added. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention
in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the

asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

- Debt instruments at amortised cost

_ Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

- Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

- Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if the
collecting contractual cash flows, and contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to ¢
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from

impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for
ash flows that are solely payments of

Debt instrument at FVTOCI
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if the objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash

flows and selling the financial assets, and the asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value
movements are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment
losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to the statement of profit and loss.

Debt instrument at FVTPL
FV‘IPI: is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at
amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.
In adinlc;n, the Comciar;y may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at
FVTP owever, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces liminat ition i i :
S5 A e a e g or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to
Debt i ] s s : .

ebt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit

Derecognition
A ﬁnam_:ial asset is derecognized only when
a) the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset is transferred or

b) Etains the contr; tua.l gh t
0 receive the Cash flo i i
I ; ac rights v ”! ws of the ﬁnanclal ﬂSSEt, but assumes a contractual obhgatlon to pay the cash ﬂOWb

Wh i

; w::; ;t;:;n&tgﬁl:;sn t‘r:]nsferred an asset, the Compan)_i evaluatps whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of

o ci as§et. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all
ew. ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where th i i i i i

Vi etheeﬁenn:;t:i;l'las nelt%1er transfel:red a financial asset, nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial

conh:d by :rlslset is derecogmged if t_he Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains
ancial asset, the asset is ggntinued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

LCHy
S
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PETUNT FOOD PROCESSORS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in INR thousand, unless stated otherwise)

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on financial assets that are measured at amortised cost, FVTPL and FVTOCI and for the measurement and
recognition of credit risk exposure.

The Company follows a ‘simplified approach’ for recognition
simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recogn
based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used .to
provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If in subsequent year, cre(-llt quality
of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts
to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12 months ECL.

Life time ECLs are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The
12 months ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the year end.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trad.c
receivables, The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is
adjusted for forward- looking estimate. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and c_hanges in the
forward- looking estimates are analysed. On that basis, the Company estimates impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade
receivables.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate (EIR). When estimating the cash
flows, an entity is required to consider all contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension etc.) over the
expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated
reliably, then the entity uses the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the year is recognised as income/ expense in the statement of profit and
loss. In balance sheet ECL for financial assets measured at amortised cost is presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write off criteria,
the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

of impairment loss allowance en trade receivables. The application of
ises the impairment loss allowance

Financial liabiliti

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities. are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,

payables, or as derivatives not designated as hedging instruments, as appropriate.

Atlz 'il";nanl:]la] llabﬂlh?£ are recogl:.nised init.ia.lly a.at fair value and in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly

; r;_l tutade transaction costs. Fair valuah?n gains/ losses, on initial recognition of financial liabilities are recognised in Statement of
rofit an Loss exc.:ept in cases of such gains/ losses being occurred on account of transactions with holding/ subsidiary company in

1\\:}]]ncg case such gains/ losses are accounted as capital contribution (securities premium) in equity.

e Company'’s financial liabilities includ i i ings i i
e e trade and other payables, optionally convertible debentures, loans and borrowings including
Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities de; i ificati i

! casureme pends on their classification, as di :
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss sdescrbed below
; I:JI:?:JIC;:: ‘l}xga:lllnlg:s aast ftm;a‘i?]\lf:l ;l:rgtl:gh g;oﬁt (:irtloss]mclude financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon
i rough profit or loss. Financial liabilities classified as held for trading incl ivati i
instruments entered into by the Company that are not desi ing i i e B Al T

. dinto] gnated as hedging instrument h i i
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the State:inf of Profit oi: Ii:::s i e
Loans and borrowings |
After initial recognition, interest-bearing b i

; g borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR m i
3 i ethod.
losses.ar:? recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are dereco isedga.s well th o g
amortisation process. * S
Amortised cost is calculated by taking i i i
g into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs th i
. 3 . * t
ther EIR. 'l:'l?e EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. s o
ua?,?]?;c;:]rl;;}ﬂfg Eyd:;iiﬁi?l:;d wt};‘en the oibligdanon uncll)er the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
! m the same lender on substantially different terms, or the te f isting liabili i
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as iti igi b fiamais o sl et
led, the derecognition of the original liability and the recogniti iabili
i ’ ! : he de on of a ;
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss. . nev Iy

Page 14 of 44



PETUNT FOOD PROCESSORS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in INR thousand, unless stated otherwise)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Derivative ial in niti iti u meas! n

The Company has issued Optionally Convertible Debentures. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on
the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial
assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to statement of profit and loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant rick of changes in value.

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, Cash and Cash Equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net
of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average numbers of equity shares outstanding during the
period are adjusted for events of bonus issue, share split or consolidation of shares.

For calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the after income tax effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. The
dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date.

---This space has been left blank intentionally---
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PETUNT FOOD PROCESSORS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in INR thousand, unless stated otherwise)

3(a) Capital-work-in progress (CWIP) ageing schedule

As at 31 March 2022

Amount in CWIP for a period of

CWIP/ intangible under development

/ gl P Less than 1 year 1-2 years  2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Projects in progress 9,203.57 3,830.00 - - 13,033.57

As at 31 March 2021

i : Amount in CWIP for a period of
CWIP/ intangible und evel t
! i s open Less than 1 year 1-2 years  2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Projects in progress 25,238.30 - - - 25,238.30

As at year ends, none of CWIP is outstanding whose capitalisation is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its plan.

4 Right-of-use assets
Amount
Cost
As at 31 March 2020 149,373.70
Additions 6,772.26
Disposals/ adjustments (149,373.70)
As at 31 March 2021 6,772.26
Additions -
Disposals/ adjustments -
As at 31 March 2022 6,772.26
Accumul reciation
Up to 31 March 2020 18,049.35
For the year 7,876.70
Disposals/ adjustments (25,845.43)
Up to 31 March 2021 __’8_06E_
For the year ——
Disposals/ adjustments 519.45
As at 31 March 2022 e
600.07

Net block
As at 31 March 2022 e

6,601.64

---This space has been left blank intentionally---
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PETUNT FOOD PROCESSORS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Mnancial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in INR thousand, unless stated otherwise)

5 Financial Assets- Bank balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents

Non- current Current
As at Asat As at As at
31 March 31 March 31 March 21 March
2022 2021 2022 2021

Balanee with bank

-in grant escrow account® - - - 8.40

- - - R.A0
#represents earmarked balances in Escrow account on receipt of Government grant which can be Ttilised for:ﬁgible payments towéh;
vendors of Property Plant and Equipment.

6 Financial Asscts- Others
Non- current Current
As at As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

2022 2021 2022 2021
Financial assets valued at amortised cost
- in bank deposits nnder lien with tax anthorities and against - 45,187.00 - 2,500.00
term borrowings with original maturity of more than 12
months
-Security deposits 83.00 83.00 235.00 127.00
-Unbilled revenue - - 5,000.00 -

655.95

S0 _aeeeoy _ Gapeo __gavees

_Interest recoverable (on bank deposits)

7 Other Assets

Non- current Current
As at Ag at As at As at
91 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

2022 2021 2022 2021
Balances with government authorities 45,667.28 36,331.09 19,790.52 8,791.92
Advance to suppliers - - 4,688.07 134.08
Advance to supplier towards capital goods 2,154.88 22,380.85 E -
Advance to employees - - 83.60 48.32
Prepaid expenses 638.64 653.67 402.76 279.57

és.éﬁo.so ﬂ.g6§.61 gg.qﬁr..og Q,zg.sq

8 Inventories*

As at As at
31 March 31 March
Rnw material in'stock 2?(?:05 03 2(;21 6.08
Finished goods in stock k74‘1‘03 r ‘08
Stock in trade [Including in transit inventory of Rs. Nil (31 March 2021: Rs. 1,201)] L 1 :g?'oo
Store, spares and econsumables 3,040.69 1,902- 56

Packing materials 20,143.58 5,28
1 5,281.62

Less: Provision for obsolete inventory 3(2"1*32293) !(2,;‘;'34;
N B 2 s
) 1 1 366.2?
*Valied at lower of cost and net realisable value except for Store, spares and consumables and Packing materia's wEicE are vaiuec at cost.

During the year ended 31 M : i . i : f o 3
e 5) - v:']ue_en 31 March 2022: Rs. Nil (31 March 2021: Rs. Nil) was recognised as expense for inventories recognised at net
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PETUNT FOOD PROCESSORS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in INR thousand, unless stated otherwise)

9 Financial Asset - Trade receivable

Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses

Further classified as:

As at As at
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
6,030.43 7,721.27
(1,001.60) (899.36)

5,028.8; 6!821.21

Receivable from companies with common director 491.96 -
Receivable from others 5,538.47 7,721.27
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (1,001.60) (899.36)
5,028.83 6,821.01
Trade receivables ageing schedule:
As at 31 March 2022
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Not due Lessthan 6 6 months- 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
months 1 year years
(i)Undisputed
trade
receivables -
considered
good 3,620.75 1390.40 234.67 B 784.61 - 6,030.43
3,620.75 1,390.40 234.67 - »84.61 - 6,030.43
As at 31 March 2021
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Not due Less than 6 6 months - 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
months 1year years
(i) Undisputed
trade
receivables -
considered
good 33;:)55;).gg 3,886688.10 17.58 784.61 - B 7,721.27
g i 3, .10 17.58 784.61 - - .721.27
10 Financial Asset - Cash and cash equivalents
As at As at
31 March 31 March
Balances with banks 2022 2021
- in current accounts
Cash on hand 9,562.30 1,174.49
36.31 34.66
9,598.01 1,209.15
Footnote i: For the purpose of Special purpose statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise following;
As at As at
31 March 31 March
Balances with banks 2022 2021
- in current accounts
Cash on hand 9,562.30 1,174.49
36.31 34.66
9,598.61 1,209.15
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PETUNT FOOD PROCESSORS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in INR thousand, unless stated otherwise)

11 Share capital
The Company has only one class of share capital having a par value of Rs. 10 per share, referred o herein as equity sharcs.

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Number Amount Number Amount
(absolute (absolute
_figure) figore)
Authorised
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each (31 March 2021: Rs.10) 8,000,000 80,000.00 8,000,000 80,000.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each (31 March 2021: Rs.10) 7,378,008 73,780.98 7,378,098 73,780.98

7378008 ___73.780.08 7,378,008 __ 73.780.08

a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period.

For the vear 31 March 2022 For the vear 31 March 2021
Number Amount Number Amount
(absolute (absolute
figure) figure)
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 7,378,098 73,780.98 7,378,098 73,780.98
Shares issued during the year - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 7,378,098 73,780.98 7,378,008 0_8___23.:2_9_80- 8

b. Terms/rights attached to shares

Voting: Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share held.

Dividends: The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. Interim dividend declared in Board of Directors' meeting is
distributed within stipulated time mandated by the law. Distribution of final dividend as proposed by the Board of Directors is paid
after approval of the shareholders in General Meeting.

Liquidation: In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares shall be entitled to receive all of the remaining
assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, if any. Such distribution amounts will be in proportion to the
number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

¢. Details for shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/associates are as follows:

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid Holding in % of total Holding in % of total
" numbers equity shares numbers equity shares
Bikaji Foods International Limited (Holding company 3,779,100 51.22% 3,779,100 51.22%

w.e.f. 3 February 2021)

d. Detail of shareholders holding more than 5% of equity share of the Company

. As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid Holding in % of total Holding in % of total
= numbers equity shares number i
Bikaji Foods Intgrnational Limited 3,779,100 51.22% 3 779.‘100 - S:]a::;
3‘;5];2;?{';“;&[33 428,500 5.81% 428,500 5.81%
b e o ) . 1,799,518 24.30% 1,861,625 25.23%
phin Communications Private Limited 770,715 10.45% 770,715 16-45%
e. Shareholding of Promoters
As at 31 March 2022
As at 31 March zoz22 As at 31 March 2021
% Change
o No. of Share % of total % of total A0S
res B No. of Shares fesos during the
Bikaji Foods International Limited 3,779,100 51.22% 3,779,100 51.22% —

During the year, the Board of Directors has resolved to mention Bikaji Foods International Limited as sole Promoter of the Company.
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As at 31 March 2021
As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020

9% Change

Name No. of Shares %s(})’ftotal No. of Shares %ol during the
) ares shares year*

Nice Texcot Trading & Agency Frivate = - 3,779,100 51.22% -51.22%
Limited
Vishrut Rangwala 1,861,625 25.23% 1,861,625 25.23% -
Sulabh Bhandari 428,500 5.81% 428,500 5.81% -
Vikas Pincha 5,000 0.07% 5,000 0.07% -
Bikaji Foods International Limited 3,779,100 51.22% - 51.22%

*Change represent transfer of equity shares of the Company among Nice Texcot Trading & Agency Private Limited and Bikaji Foods
International Limited, during the previous year.

£. No class of shares have been issued as bonus shares or for consideration other than cash by the Company during the period of five
years immediately preceding the reporting date.

g. No class of shares have been bought back by the Company during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.
h. Shares reserved for Optionally Convertible Debentures:

For Optionally Convertible Debentures : The OCDs may be converted into equity shares being allotted at par and credited as fully paid
up.

——This space has been left blank intentionally--
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12 Other equity | — i

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Retained earnings and others (Refer footnote i) (106,242.26?) (6;;,27; .c; :)
Securities premium (Refer footnote i) 31,609. 31,699.
130.19 -

13

ESOP
Share based payment reserve (Parent Company ) (74.912.49) (36,071.40)

Footnote i: Retained earnings and others — —
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
As at beginning of the year (67,771.01) (67,489.02)
Add: (loss) for the year (39,300.43) (47.22)
: 320.15 (234.77).

Add: Re-measurement (losses) of defined benefit plans 204 : -
on and accumulated re-measurement (losses)/ gains of deﬁne%

*Represent deficit reserves due to accumulated losses since incorporati

benefit plans.
Footnote ii: Securities premium*
As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
As at beginning of the year _ 31,699.61 -
Add: Initial recognition gain on issue of Optionally convertible debentures to holding company - 31,699.61

_ 31,609.61 ____31,609.61

Footnote iii: Share based payment reserve (Parent Company ESOP)”
As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

As at beginning of the year =
Add: ESOP expense for the year 130.19 =

130.19 -

"1_'he Company issuer:l _OCD Series A and Series B in previous period . Such amounts were classified as financial liability in accordance
with terms and f:ondlt'mns of such debentures. Financial liability is recognised at fair value which represents the present value of all
futtl.ill‘e cash retzlpts discounted using the prevailing market rate of interest for a similar instrument with a similar credit rating and
options were valued using Pricing Model. This amount represent fair valuation gain on initial re iti i i

A cognition presented as not
contribution by holding company. ’ ’ paomye

*The Share based payment reserve (Parent Com; i i i
; pany ESOP) is used to recognise the grant date fair value of g i
issued to employee under Parent Company Employee Stock Option Plan. : ¥ B L i

Provisions

Non- current Current
As at As at As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 202131 March 2022 31 March 2021

Compensated absences

Gratuity = = 53.42 1,149.99
959.35 908.33 23.56 0.91
959.35 908.33 76.98 1,150.90

---This space has been left blank intentionally---
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14 Financial Liabilitics - Borrowings Non- current Current
Asat As at As at As al

91 March 2022 31 March 2021 __31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Secured, from bank (Refer footnotes i and note ii)

-term loan 169,163.74 34,677.78 - -
-cash credit loan - - - 1,485.83
-working capital loan - - 20,000.00 -
Unsecured, from related parties (Refer footnote iii)

-Intercorporate loans - 4,297.86 - -
-Promoters (with interest rate being nil) - - - -
-0.001% Optionally convertible debentures (OCD Series 64,297.94 59,260.77 - -
A)

-Optionally convertible debentures with variable coupon 57,736.54 53,213.40 - -
rates (OCD Series B)
201,108.22 151,440.81 20,000.00 1,485.83
(Less)/ add: Current maturities of long term borrowings (18,750.00) (15,275.63) 18,750.00 15,275.63
272,448.22 136,174.18 38,750.00 16,761.46
Footnotes:

i Roth, term loan and working capital loan in current year are from Citibank amounting Rs. 1,69,163.74 (31 March 2021: Nil) and Rs.
20,000.00 (31 March 2021: Nil), respectively.
Term loan is secured by way of:
First charge on moveable fixed assets (Plant and machinery), and
Working capital loan is secured by way of:
First charge over inventory and receivables.

Both loans are guaranteed by the Holding Company.

- The interest rates for both facilities are 5.35%.

-term loan is repayable in 16 equal quarterly instalments post 12 months moratorium, to be serviced from 15th month from the date of
drawdown.

ii During the year company fully prepaid term loans and cash credit loan of Yes Bank and SBL

iii Non-current unsecured loans from promoters represent loans from related parties which repayable on 31 March 2022 and interest free.
However, these have been prepaid during the year.
11,000,000, Optionally convertible debentures (OCD Series A) have been issued to the Holding Company at face value of Rs. 10 each
and carry a cumulative coupon rate of 0.001%. These OCD Series A also contain option to covert redemption proceedings to variable
number (at discount) of equity share of the Company at option of Investor between 1 April 2028 to 31 March 2031.
6,070,700, Optionally convertible debentures (OCD Series B) have been issued to the Holding Company at face value of Rs. 10 each and
carry varying non cumulative monthly coupon rates. These OCD Series B also contain option to covert redemption proceedings to
variable number (at discount) of equity share of the Company at option of Investor between 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2027. Coupon
rates of OCD Series B are 0%, 3%, 4%, 6%, 7%, 8% for period up to 31 March 2022, 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023, 1 April 2023 to 31
March 2024, 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025, 1 April 2025 to 31 March 2026 and 1 April 2026 to 31 March 2027, respectively.

15 Financial Liabilities - Trade payable

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 9,199.28 5,907.04
Total outstanding dues of trade payables other than micro enterprises and 53,001.63 29’.707.80

small enterprises #

) 62,200.91 35.614.84
#Refer footnote i of note 16.

---This space has been left blank intentionally---
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Trade payable ageing schedule

As at 31 March 2022
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Not Due* Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
years
(i) MSME 4,869.15 4,105.58 80.37 144.18 - 9,199.28
(ii) Others 8,068.93 42,229.85 2,091.22 701.63 - 53,001.63
(iii) Disputed dues = - & s = =
- MSME
(iv)Disputed dues - s - - - - -
Others

* Not due (Others) and Not due (MSME) include unbilled dues amounting Rs. 315.74 and 2,462.82, respectively.

As at 31 March 2021
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
‘Not Due* Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
years
(i) MSME 2,755.89 1,660.58 1,490.57 - - 5,907.04
(ii) Others 17,053.91 10,578.12 2,055.47 20.30 29,707.80
(iii) Disputed dues - - - - - -
- MSME
(iv) Disputed dues - - - - - -
- Others
* Not due (Others) includes unbilled dues amounting Rs. 2,124.15.
16 Financial Liabilities - Others
Non- current Current
As at As at As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 202131 March 2022 31 March 2021

Liabilities designated at amortised cost

Employee related payables - - 2,238.79 3,086.97

Payables for acquisition of Property Plant and Equipment - - 1,826.06 10,961.81

(Refer footnote 1)

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - - 479.08 261.99

Liabilities designated at fair value through profit '

and loss

Option (call) on OCD Series A 16,345.25 15,857.45 - -

Option (call) on OCD Series B 9,788.25 10,652.64
26,133.50 26,510.09

---This space has been left blank intentionally---
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Footnote i: Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises:
Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006) (“MSMED Act,

2006"):

As at As at
21 March 2022 31 March 2021

(a) Amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year:

-the principal amount
Included in trade payables 9,199.28 5,907.04
Included in payables for acquisition of Property Plant and Equipment - 10,576.64

-the interest due thereon

(b) the amounts paid by the buyer during the year
-interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 5 -
Development Act, 2006

-Principle repaid to suppliers beyond the appointed day during each accounting year
(¢) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have = =
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified

under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

(d) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year 38.29 69.02
(e) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until 259.66 221.37
such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose

of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2000.

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends
that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum
Number (now Udyam Registration Number) as allocated after filing of the Memorandum. Rased on the information available with the
management, there are no over dues outstanding to micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, other than those disclosed above. Further, the Company has not received any claim for interest

from any supplier under the said Act.

Breakup of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost:

Asat As at
) 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Borrowings (Refer note 14) 311,198.22 152,935.64
Trade payable (Refer note 15) 62,290.91 35,614.84
Other payables (Refer note 16) 4,543-93 14,310.77

378,033.00 202,861.25

Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:

Borrowings: Refer note 14 for detailed terms and conditions.

Trade payable: These are non interest bearing and are normally settled in 0-60 days depending upon terms with respective vendors.
Other payable: These are non interest bearing and are normally settled in 0-60 days depending upon terms with respective vendors.

17 Other Liabilities Non- current Current
As at As at As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 __31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Advance from customers - -

Unspent grant liability* - - R 4 355? 423

Deferred grant income L 726

39,208.41 ,544.36 ,710.

TDS and TCS payable Lo T | “sesa

Goods and services tax payable - - 81 .28 ’ .

Provident fund payable - s 15f; 55 158.23

Employee state insurance payable - - 13'01 10 Io

Professional tax payable - - 7 l80 6‘22
___39,208.41 37.544.36 526113 ____7,571.89

*Represent amount of government grant received in advance of fulfilment of recognition conditions.
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18 Revenue from operations*

Fortheyear  For the year

31 March 2022 31 March zoz1
Sale of manufactured goods
-Sale of products 103,940.52 64,673.93
Sale of raw material 52,417.69 &
Sale of packing material 505.57 =
Sale of trading goods 5,279.83 =
Sale of service 57,803.36 61,255.13
Other operating revenue
- Liquidated damages income = 957-40
- Scrap sales 721.15 =

%&12 126.886.46

*Above revenue has been earned in respect of single business of the Company i.e. Foods and Snacks.

19 Other income

For the year For the year
31 March zo22 31 March 2021

Interest income on

-Fixed deposits designated as amortised cost 226.18 3,874.17
-Income tax refund - 69.73
Others

_Liabilities written back other than operating lease liabilities 1,539.01 26,870.68
-Operating lease liabilities written back on modification - 13,258.13
-Leave encashment reversal, net 654.69 -

-Amortisation of Deferred grant income 2,710.24 256.11
-Sublease rental income - 300.00
- Consultancy income 186.07 367.71
-Options fair valuation gain 864.39 1,542.05
-Provision for obsolete inventory written back 1,054.08 -

-Gain on disposal of Property, plant and equipment - 2.10

7,234.66 46,540.68

20 Cost of material consumed

For the year For the year
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Raw materials consumed

Raw material at the beginning of the year 1,246.08 1,691.00

Add: Purchases ) 117,113.18 44,739.60

Less: Raw material at the end of the year (10,505.93) (1,246.08)

Total cost of Raw material consumed (A) 10 ;} : )18 ‘ 2

7,853.33 45.184.5
Pacla_d.ng materials consumed
i::lckmg material at the beginning of the year 5,281.62 4,175.90
d: Purchases 808. 101
. 0,808.

Less: Packing material at the end of the year [io,llﬂgs 503 ) ( ;ﬁg:.gﬁ!

Total cost of packing material consumed (B) 25 946' 13 .82

Total cost of material consumed (A+B) 1 , . 6 z’?gﬁ. 2
33:799.4 50,180.3

---This space has been left blank intentionally---
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21 Changes in inventories of finished goods and stock-in-trade

22

23

Inventories at the beginning of the year
-Finished goods
-Traded goods

Less: Inventories at the end of the year
-Finished goods
-Traded goods

Employee benefit expenses

Salary, wages, bonus and other benefits (including on-contract employee)
Contribution to provident and other funds

Gratuity expenses

Leave encashment expense

Employee stock options expenses (Refer note 42)

Staff welfare expenses

Finance costs

Interest expenses on

Borrowings measured at amortised cost
-on Term loan

-on Working capital loan

-on Operating lease liabilities

-on Optionally convertible debentures
-on Cash credit

Others

-on Statutory dues

-on dues to Micro and Small enterprises
-others

-—This space has been left blank intentionally---
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For the year For the year
31 March 31 March 2021
2022
479.08 3,108.73
1,201.00 =
1,680.08 3,108.73
(741.03) (479.08)
- (1,201.00)
(741.03) (1,680.08)
0939.05 1.428.65
For the year For the year
31 March 31 March 2021
2022
42,554.47 36,127.10
1,024.79 1,051.39
402.82 293.16
- 938.10
130.19 -
4,226.27 2,139.55
48.338.54 40,549.30
For the year For the year
31 March 31 March 2021
2022
4,850.40 3,460.13
609.26 -
- 11,925.60
9,560.31 1,518.03
463.46 749-44
262.08 54.82
38.29 69.02
66.68 -

15,850.48 17,777.-94
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24 Other expenses

For the year For the year
31 March 31 March 2021

2022

Power and fuel expense 23,860.78 17,446.92
Stores and spares consumed 4,721.84 3,966.99
Water expenses 2,601.30 1,495.47
Freight outward and forwarding charges 882.57 2,842.55
Repairs and maintenance - machinery 1,814.81 703.65
Repairs and maintenance - others 3,201.59 2,674.36
Rates, taxes and fees 97.88 275.15
Rent expense 2,747.16 3,214.17
Legal and professional expense (Refer footnote i) 1,462.47 2,313.96
Balances written off (other than trade receivable) 1,906.59 325.77
Travelling expenses 1,788.57 1,488.87
Insurance expense 341.86 38.45
Bank charges 33.11 30.19
Provision for obsolete inventory - 4,243.37
Provision for doubtful debt 102.24 699.20
Bad debts written off 617.12 -
Options fair valuation loss 487.80 -
Other expenses 953.79 863.16

47,621.48 42,622.23

Footnote i: Details of payments to auditors (exclude GST)":

For the year For the year
31 March 31 March 2021

2022
As auditors for:
Statutory audit fees 130.00 130.00
Tax audit fees 20.00 20.00
Certificates” 32.50 12.00
182.50 162.00

~Amounts paid towards certificates in previous year have been paid to predecessor auditor.

25 Income tax
Major components of Income tax expense for the year ended 31 March 2022 and vear ended 31 March 2021 are as follows:
For theyear  For the vear

31 March 31 March 2021
2022

Profit and loss section
Current income tax:
Current income tax charge
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of previous year
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences
Adjustment in respect of previous year

Income tax expense reported in profit and loss section
OCI section -

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year:
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) of defined benefit plans

Neither deferred tax nor current tax relating to any component has been charged or credited directly to equity.

-—This space has been left blank intentionally---
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Reconciliation of tax expense with the accounting tax based on India's domestic tax rate for 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021:
For the year For the year
31 March 31 March 2021

2022

Accounting profit/ (loss) before income tax (39.300.43) (47.22)
Accounting profit taxable at India's domestic tax rates (35,389.43) , 22
Tax calculated at India's standard statutory tax rates 26.00% (10,218.11) (12.28)
(31 Maich 2021 26.00%)

Difference in tax as per books and tax as per table above 10,218.11 12.28

Reason for differences:

Non recognition of deferred tax assets in absence of reasonable certainty of reversal 10,218.11 12.28

Adjusted with deferred tax assets not recognised in earlier years - -
10,218.11 12.28

The Company has not recognised Deferred Tax assets in absence of reasonable certainty of its reversal in near future.

26 Earnings per share (EPS) _
Basic EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit (or loss, as applicable) for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted
average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calenlated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders (after adjusting cffect of dilutive shares) by the
weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares }hat would be
issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares. Due to losses, OCDs have been considered as anti
dilutive.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

For the year For the year
31 March 3i March 2021

2022

Loss after tax attributable to the Equity shareholders (in Rs. thousands) (39,300.43) (47.22)
Basic and diluted average equity shares (in numbers) 7,378,008 7,378,098
Nominal value of equity shares (in Rs.) 10.00 10.00
Basic and diluted earnings loss per shares (in Rs.) (5.33) (0.01)

27 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation Uf the Company’s financial information requires management v make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilitics. Uncertainty about thesc assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgements

There are no significant judgements involved in preparation of these financial statement.

Estimates and assumptions

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

‘The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan , the present value of the gratuity obligation is determined using actuarial valustions. An
actuarial valuation involves making varicus assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary inereases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and ite
long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the
management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencics consistent with the currencics of the post-cmployment
benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables (IALM) notified by Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority in
India. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases are based on
expected future inflation rates.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 31.
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Useful life, method and residual value of property plant and equipment

Plant and machineries and factory buildings contribute significant portion of the Company's Property, plant and equipment. The
Company capitalises its plant and machineries and factory buildings in accordance with the accounting policy disclosed under note 2.3
above. The Company estimates the useful life and residual value of assets as mentioned in note 2.3. However the actual useful life and
residual value may be shorter/ less or longer/ more depending on technical innovations and competitive actions. Further, Company is
depreciating its plant and machineries and factory buildings by using straight line method based on the management estimate that
repairs/ wear and tear to plant and machineries and factory buildings are consistent over useful life of assets.

Income taxes

In assessing the realizability of deferred income tax assets, the Management considers whether some portion or all of the deferred income
tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred income tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable
income during the periods in which the temporary differences become deductible. The Management considers the scheduled reversals of
deferred income tax liabilities, projected future taxable income and tax-planning strategies in making this assessment. Based on the level
of historical taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred income tax assets are
deductible, the Management believes that the Company may not realize the benefits of those deductible differences.

Fair value measurement of Options in Convertible Debentures

When the fair values of the financial assets and liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on the quoted market
prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation technique. The inputs to these models are taken from the observable
market where possible, but where this is not feasible, a review of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Changes in
assumptions relating to these inputs could affect the fair value of financial instruments.

28 Commitments and contingencies
a. Commitments

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account [Net of advances of 20,885.73 99,644.57
Rs. 2,154.88 (31 March 2021: Rs. 22,380.85)]

2088573 _ 09.644.57

b. Contingencies- contingent liabilities

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt:

The Company has estimated Contingent Liabilities in respect of show-cause notices received from Government Autharities in respect of
the following:

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

(i) Goods and Service Tax (GST) exposure based on show cause notice received from authorities

during the GST audit performed by them for the period o1 July 17 till 31 March 20. These matters
are detailed as follows:

a. Interest on delayed reversal of excess input credit availed

b. Availment of blocked input tax credits e )
¢. Duty payable as per Reverse Charge Mechanism 79 Z: )
6.441.44 -

Based on ravoura.ble deqisiuns in similar cases and discussions with the concultants ste., the Company belioves that it has good cases in
respect of all the items listed above and hence no provision against these is considered necessary.

c. Contingencies- contingent assets
There is no contingent assets as at 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: nil).
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20 Related Party Disclosures
In accordance with the requirement of Ind AS- 24 on “Related Party Disclosures”, the names of the related parties where control exists

along with the aggregate transactions/ year end balances with them as identified and certified by the management are given below:

A) Name of related parties and description of relationship
i. Parties that exercise common control

Relationship Name
Bikaji Foods International Limited (w.e.f. 3 February 2021)

Holding company

Holding company Nice Texcot Trading & Agency Private Limited (till 2 February 2021)
ii. Key Management Personnel and their relatives:

Relationship Name

Director Sulabh Bhandari

Director Vishrut Rangwala

Director Vikas Khushal Pincha (till 3 February 2021)

Director Deepak Agarwal (w.e.f. 9 February 2021)

Director Shweta Agarwal (w.e.f. 9 February 2021)

B) Transactions with related parties (excluding GST, as applicable):
Fortheyear  For the year

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Expenditure
581.27 393.03

Key Management Personnel

Interest expenditure

Bikaji Foods International Limited (w.e.f. 3 February 2021) 9,560.31 1,518.93
Expenditure recharged

Bikaji Foods International Limited (w.e.f. 3 February 2021) 9,425.85 -
Purchases

Bikaji Foods International Limited (w.e.f. 3 February 2021) 27,452.91 1,370.47
Sales

Bikaji Foods International Limited (w.e.f. 3 February 2021) 95,515.95

P]Jrghase of capital goods

Bikaji Foods International Limited (w.e.f. 3 February 2021) 4,729.91

Borrowings taken (including OCD)

Bikaji Foods International Limited (w.e.f. 3 February 2021)

~ 148,707.00
Borrowings repaid
Key Management Personnel
® 671.77
Rem ration - Sh love fi
Vishrut Rangwala —
Sulabh Bhandari 2,465.27 1,496.95
1,515.95 788.40
Remuneration - Contributi ibuti
semuneration - Lontribution to defined contribution plan
VRIGE Rt efined contribution plan
Sulabh Bhandari 21.60 10.32
12.60 10.32
Remuneration - Expenses accrued/ (reversed) towards defined benefit plans
s om—— reve wards defined benefi ns
Sulabh Bhandari 98.28 27.23
(128.33) 59.96
a:}l:‘ln‘lltn Ra:gt:v 111 = enses accerued/ (reversed) towards other long term benefits
ala
Sulabh Bhandari (101.05) 101.05
(146.91) 146.01
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C) Balance outstanding as at year end
As at Asat

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Borrowings (including OCD)
Bikaji Foods International Limited (w.e.f. 3 February 2021) 122,034.48 112,474.17
OCD call option derivatives
Bikaji Foods International Limited (w.e.f. 3 February 2021) 26,133.50 26,510.09
Trade Payable (Including Capital assets purch related able
Bikaji Foods International Limited (w.e.f. 3 February 2021) 37,851.02 1,517.90
Key Management Personnel 33.81 64.12
Advances from Customer
Bikaji Foods International Limited (w.e.f. 3 February 2021) 1,756.84 -
Unbilled receivable
Bikaji Foods International Limited (w.e.f. 3 February 2021) 5,000.00 -
Salary payable
Key Management Personnel ) 56.74 170.54

Defined contribution plan
During the year, the Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss:
For the year For the year
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Employer's contribution to provident fund 906.18 953.54
Employer's contribution to employee state insurance fund 117.05 96.57
Employer's contribution to labour welfare fund 1.56 1.28

1,024.70 1,051.39

Defined employment benefits (Gratuity)

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employee who are in continuous
service for a period of more than 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity on retirement/ termination is the employees last
drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The gratuity
plan is a an unfunded plan.

i. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

For the year For the year
31 March 31 March 2021

2022
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year 909.24 381.31
Interest cost 75.80 25.95
Current service cost 327.02 267.21
Benefits paid = -
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations (329.15) 234.77
Present value obligation as at the end of the year 982.91 909.24

ii. Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation and fair value of assets
For the year For the year
31 March 31 March 2021

2022
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year (982.91) (909.24)
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year - -
Net funded surplus (982.91) (909.24)
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iv. Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Current service cost

Interest cost

Total recognised in profit and loss
Remeasurements

-(Gain) from change in demographic assumptions
-(Gain)/ loss from change in financial assumptions
-Experience loss/ (gain) adjustments

Total recognised in other comprehensive income

Fortheyear  Fortheyear
31 March 31 March 2021
2022
327.02 267.21
75.80 25.95
402.82 293.16
(61.25) (26.03)
(63.65) 436.43
(204.25) (175.63)
(329.15) 234.77

v. The Company's defined benefit plan is unfunded and hence disclosure relating to ‘Employers best estimate of contribution to defined

benefit plan (gratuity) for next reporting period' is not applicable.

vi: The weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation is 15.50 years (31 March 2021: 15.02 years).

vii: The expected maturity analysis of defined benefit obligation (gratuity) is as follows:

For the year 31 March 2022

Less than 1 Between 1-2 Between 2-5 QOver 5 years Total
year years years
Defined benefit obligation (gratuity) 24.425 42.473 249.19 481.68 797.77
SRS BEEE R e Less than 1 Between 1-2 Between 2-5 Over 5 years Total
year years years
Defined benefit obligation (gratuity) 0.94 10.19 103.92 200.20 414.25
viii. Actuarial assumptions
For the year For the year
31 March 31 March 2021
2022
Discount rate (per annum) 7.48% 7.07%
Expected Rate of increase in compensation levels 10% 10%
Mortality Rate IALM (2012-14) [ALM (2012-14)
Ultimate Ultimate
Withdrawal Rate 10.00% 5.00%

The discount rate assumed is 7.48%
the Balance Sheet date on governm
inflation, seniority,

A quantitative sensitive analysis for significant assumptions are as follows:
For the year 31 March 2022

per annum (31 March 2021: 7.07% per annum) which is determined by reference to market yield at
: ent bonds. The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Increase by % Impact on Decrease by % Impact on
. PBO PBO
Discount rate. 1% (91.65) 1% 107.36
Future salary increase 1% 78.03 1% (78.24)
For the year 31 March 2021
Increase by % Impact on Decrease by % Impact on
2 PBO PBO
iscount rate' 1% (125.36) 1% 127.55
Future salary increase 1% 89.01 1% (83.82)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined on a method that extra;

r«.aasfmab]e changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the repo
significant impact on the liability, hence,
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32 Fair values

The management assessed that carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, borrowings, operating lease liabilities,
trade payable, other current financial liabilities and other current financial assets approximates their fair value amounts largely due to
short term maturities of these instruments except for long term borrowings. In case of long term borrowing, there has been no significant
movement in interest rates applicable on those borrowings and interest rates prevailing as at reporting dates and accordingly carrying
value and fair value of these long term values as at balance sheet dates are similar. Security deposits classified as non current financial
assets are for perpetuity and shall be refundable on surrendering of electricity connection only, which is highly unlikely and hence fair
valne of the same cannot be determined in absence of definite period of such deposits. Comparison of the earrying valne and fair valne of

the Company's financial instruments are as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (Level 3)
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables
Others

Financial Liabilities at amortised cost (Level 3)

Borrowings other than OCD
Borrowings-OCD

Trade payables

Others

Carrying values Fair values
As at As at As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
= 4,358.40 = 4,358.40
9,508.61 1,200.15 9,598.61 1,209.15
5,028.85 6,821.01 5,028.85 6,921,091
5.318.00 48,553.04 5.318.00 48,553.04
19,045.44 60,042.50 10.045.44 60,042.50
Carrying values Fair values
As at As at As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
189,163.74 40,461.47 189,163.74 40,461.47
122,034.48 112,474.17 122,034.48 112,474.17
62,200.00 a5,614.84 62,200.90 35,614.84
4,543.93 14,310.77 4543.03 _ 14310.77

378.033.05 202,861.25 378.033.05 202.861.25

The fair value of the financial assets above is included in the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties, other than in distress sale or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the

fair value:

-gank deposits, borrowing, loans and other financial liabilities and assets are evaluated by the Company based on Interest rates prevailing
with scheduled banks for similar denomination and remaining duration of deposits/ borrowings (as applicable to assets and liabilities
respectively). As there has been no significant movement in interest rates, fair valued amount is also likely to be similar to carrying value’
Hence, carrying amounts of these deposits have been determined as fair valued amounts. .

33 Fair value hierarchy

The following table provides the fair value meas
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurem
and during the year then ended:

OCD Series A (debt portion)
O0D Soades B (dobt portion)
Value of call options of OCD Series A
Value of call options of OCD Serics B

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hie

Value of eall options of OCD Series A
Value of call options of OCD Series B

urement hierarchy of the Company's assets and Habiliies
ent hierarchy as at 3 February 2021 (initial recognition - non recurring)

Date _of Total Quoted price Significant Significant
valuation in active observable unobservable
markets (Level inputs inputs
1) (Level 2) Level
3 February 2021 58,460.48 - RB_460.4R . 2
J February 2021 52,404.78 - '52,494.78 -
3 February 2021 16,753.35 - - 16,753,
3 Fcbruary 2021 11,208.70 11,,’ 98-335
208,
139,007.40 - 110,955.26 28,052.14
D rarchy as at 31 March 2021 and during the year then ended:
la:ute of Total Quoted price Significant Significant
valuation in active observable unobservable
markets (Level inputs inputs
— 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
31 March 2021 15.857.45 - = 15.857.45
31 March 2021 10,652.64 - - 16"6;2‘6;
26,510.00 - - 26,;310.;'19
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Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy as at 31 March 2022:

Date of Total Quoted price Significant Significant
valuation in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Value of call options of OCD Series A 31 March 2022 16,345.25 - - 16,345.25
Value of call options of OCD Series B 31 March 2022 9,788.25 - - 9,788.25
26,133.50 - - 26,133.50

Level 2 fair values N 1
The Company uses the Discounted Cash Flow valuation technique (in relation to initial recognition of OCDs from holding company

measured at amortised cost) which involves determination of present value of expected receipt/ payment discounted using appropriate
discounting rates prevailing in market. The fair value so determined are classified as Level 2.

Level 3 fair values ' ] )
The following table shows a breakdown of the total gains (losses) recognised in respect of Level 3 fair values (Call options of Series A and

Series B OCDs):

For the year For the year
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Gain included in ‘other income’

Change in fair value (realised) (1,542 oé)

Change in fair value (unrealised) (864.39)
Gain included in ‘other expenses’ )
Change in fair value (realised) =

487.80 -

Change in fair value (unrealised)

The fair values of derivatives are estimated by using pricing models, wherein the inputs to those models are based on unobsea:vable
market parameters. The valuation models used by the Company reflect the contractual terms of the derivatives (including the period to
maturity), and market-based parameters such as interest rates, volatility etc.

These models do contain a high level of subjectivity as the valuation techniques used require significant judgement and inputs thereto
are unobservable.

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 3 fair values, as well as the significant unobservable inputs
used.

Type

Inter-relationship
between key unobservable
inputs and fair value
-An increase in free cash flows
increases the valuation on option,

and vice versa.

Valuation technique Signiant unobservable inputs

Call options of OCD  Discounted cash  flows: The Key Inputs to Business Model:
Series A and Series B valuation model considers the -Free cash flows
‘ present value of the net cash flows -Volatility of stock
expected to be generated by the

-An increase in risk free rate
.Company. Tl-u? cash ﬂ.c'w projections increases the valuation, and vice
include specific estimates for 6 versa.

Debt potion of OCD
Series Aand B
(Designated at
amortised cost) - Fair
valuation for initial
recognition (non
recurring)

years. The expected net cash flows
are

discounted using a risk adjusted
discount rate. Terminal value
(earnings post 6th years till
perpetuity) has been arrived using
the Gordon Growth method.
Computation of Option value of
OCD as per Black-Scholes-Merton
model,

The
the

flows:
considers

cash
model

Discounted
valuation

present value of the net cash flows
paid by

expected to be the

instrument.

-Risk adjusted market interest rate
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Sensitivity analysis of significant unobservable input on the fair value of Call options of OCD Series A and Series B:
Sensitivity to fair value as at 31 March 2022;

Particulars Increase % Decrease % Increase Decrease
amount amount
Free cash flows +1% -1% 4,720.00 (4,890.00)
Volatility of stock +2% -2% 1,170.00 (1,190.00)
Sensitivity to fair value as at 31 March 2021:
Particulars Increase % Decrease % Increase Decrease
amount amount
Free cash flows +2% -2% 200.00 (100.00)
Volatility of stock +2% -2% 1,300.00 (1,300.00)

34 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, operating lease liabilities, trade payables and other payables. The
main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The
Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and term deposits that derive directly from its
operations and contributions.

The Company’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. The Company's board of directors has overall
responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. This note explains the sources of risk
which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the related impact in the financial information.

i. Market risk )
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.

Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity
risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk inelude loans, borrowings, OCDs and term deposits.

a. Foreign currency risk
The Company is not exposed to foreign exchanges and related risks.

b. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Company in accordance with its policy, take borrowing and invest in deposits for periods lesser than 5 year to avoid
any significant interest rate movements due to very longer maturity duration of instruments.

The Company's major borrowings are variable rate borrowings.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

Increase by % Impacton  Decrease by % Impact on

(amount) loss (amount) loss

for the period for the year
For the year 31 March 22 0.50% 1,154.09 0.50% (1,104.70)
For the year 31 March 21 0.50% 4,348.16 0.50% (3,882.30)

ii. Credit risk

f:redjt risk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge its obligation to the Company. The Company's exposure to credit risk is
influenced mainly by cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and financial assets measured at amortised cost. The Company
continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties and incorporates this information into its credit risk controls.

Trade receivables

Customer cre.cht risk is managed by the Company subject to the Company's established receivable management policy. The policy details
how c.redit w.ul be man_aged, past due balances collected, allowances and reserves recorded and bad debt written off. Credit terms are the
established timeframe in which customers pay for purchased product. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored by the
Management.

An 1mpairm§nt ana]y'sis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for customers. The maximum exposure to credit risk
at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets.

Thg Cton_‘lpany evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as high, as its customers are located in common
jurisdictions and operate in common markets.

At 31 March 2003, th'e Company had 2 customers (31 March 2021: 2 customer) those owed the Company more than Rs. 1,000 each and
accounted for approximately 65.80% (31 March 2021: 78.00%) of all the receivables outstanding.
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Movement in expected credit loss on trade receivables during the year:

For theyear  For the year
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Opening balance 899.36 264.04

Add: Provision created during the year 102.24 635.32

Less: Provision reversed during the year = =
1,001.60 899.36

Closing

Financial instruments and cash deposits
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Director of the Company. Investments of surplus funds

are made only in bank deposits. The management continuously assess credit ratings in banks as risk assessment tool.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 is the
carrying amounts.

iii. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that
are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible,
that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s
liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company takes into account the liquidity of the

market in which the entity operates.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

As at 31 March 2022

Less than 3 3 -12 months 1 -5 years More than 5 Total

month years
Borrowings 20,000.00 18,750.00 150,413.74 122,034.48 311,198.22
Trade payables 62,290.90 - - - 62,290.90
Employee related payables 2,298.79 - - - 2,238.79
Interest accrued but not due on 479.08 - - - 479.08
borrowings
Payables for ac_quisition of Property 1,826.06 - - - 1,826.06
Plant and Equipment

86,834.83 18,750.00 150,413.74 122,034.48 378,033.05
As at 31 March 2021

Less than 3 3 - 12 months 1-5 years More than 5 Total
: month years
?orgowmgs 8,461.46 8,300.00 23,700.01 112,474.17 152,935.64
rade payables 35,614.84 - . - 148

Employee related payables 3,086.97 i, . RERI
Interest accrued but not due on 261.99 - - 3,086.97
borrowings ) = 261.99
Payables for acquisition of Property 6
Plant and Equipment 10,961.81 - - - 10,961.81

58.387.07 8,300.00 23,700.01 112,474.17 202.861.25

Above amoun.ts contain discounted values and undiscounted values. Undiscounted val
above approximately represent discounted values.

Collateral

The C . : . ;
fu]:;.l t;!:p;t}l});ira;p::iilﬁt_fe ;a;’tnt(s)f ;(t:_ ctl}f;'pog:ts, Inyento?‘is, trade receivables and portion of its property, plant and equipment in order to
reqy € borrowings. The counterparties have an obligation t curiti
There are no other significant terms and conditions associated with the use of collatera].s o S (R st e ey,

ues are very short term in nature and hence values
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35 Segment reporting
The Company primarily operates in the Foods and Snacks segment. The board of directors of the Company, which has been identified as
being the chief operating decision maker (CODM), evaluates the Company's performance, allocate resources based on the analysis of the
various performance indicators of the Company as a single unit. Therefore, there is no separate reportable segments for the Company as
per the requirement of Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”.
Geographical locations (secondary segment): The Company's entire sales is in single location i.e. 'within India’.

Segment revenue with major customers
During the year 31 March 2022, 93.91% (31 March 2021; 87.82%) of the Company’s revenue was generated from four customers (31
March 2021: four customers).

36 Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, and all other equity reserves attributable to
the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.
The Company manages its capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors
capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio
between 25% and 50%. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less
cash and cash equivalents.

As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March zo21
Borrowings 311,198.22 152,935.64
Trade payables 62,290.90 35,614.84
Others 4,543.93 14,310.77
Less: cash and cash equivalents (9,598.61) (1,209.15)
Less: Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - (52,045.49)
Net debt 368,434.44 149,606.61
Total equity (1,131.51) 37,709.58
Total capital (1,131.51) 37.709.58
Total capital and net debt 367,302.93 187,316.19
Gearing ratio 100.31% 79.87%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets
financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the
financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial
covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 March 2022 and year ended
31 March 2021.

37 Leases
The Company has taken land and building on operating leases. These lease arrangements range for a period between 11 months to 15.83

years (31 March 2021: 11 months to 15.83 years), which include both cancellable and non-cancellable leases. Information about the
leases for which the Company is a lessee is presented below:

(i) Right-of-use asset

Details of movement in carrying amounts of right of use assets is as detailed in note 4.
(ii) Lease liabilities

Details of movement in carrying amounts of operating lease liabilities are as follows:

For the year For the year
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Opening balance = 147,397.24
Add: Accretion of interest - 11,925.60
Add: Additions on new leases - 6,772.26
Less: Adjustments on modification of contracts to

-Right of use assets - (123,528.27)
-Statement of profit and loss - (13,258.13)
Less: Payments - (29,308.70)
Closing balance = =
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(iii) Amounts recognised by the Company in statement of profit and loss
Interest cost

Adjustment on modification on leases

Right of use assets

Income from subleasing right-of-use assets
Expense relating to short term leases

(iii) Amounts recognised by the Company in statement of cash flows

Total cash (outflow) for leases (Include long term leases and short term leases)

Extension options

For the year For the year
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

= 11,925.60

= (13,258.13)
519.45 7,876.70
- (300.00)
2,747.16 3,214.17

3,266.61 9,458.34

For the year For the year
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

(2,747.16) (32,522.87)

Lease contain extension options exercisable by the Company before the end of the non-cancellable contract period. Where practicable,
the Company seeks to include extension options in new leases to provide operational flexibility. The extension options held are
exercisable only on mutual agreement. The Company assesses at lease commencement whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the
extension options. The Company reassess whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the options if there is a significant event or

significant change in circumstances within its control.

-—-This space has been left blank intentionally---
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98 Ratios as per the Schedule ITI requirements

a) Current ratio = Current assets divided by Current liabilities
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 91 March
2022 2021 2020
75,069.42 30,793.27 59,642.83
gﬁ:::: ?;ieitlisties 110,922.95 75,409.86 157,074.27
Ratio 0.68 0.41 0.38
65.73% 7.54%

9% Change from previous period / year

Reason for change more than 25%: . _ .
This ratio has Increased from 0.41 in March 2021 to 0.68 in March 2022 mainly due to increase inventory and cash and cash

equivalents which has been partially offset by increase in trade payables and borrowings.

b) Debt equity ratio = Total debt divided by Total equity where total debt refers to sum of current and non current

Pertisaters v e T
31 March 31 March 31 March

2022 2021 2020

Total debt 311,198.22 152,935.64 106,418.83

i (1,131.51) 37,709.58 6,291.96

Total equity 7

Ratio : (275.04) 4.06 16.91
-6881.68% -76.02%

% Change from previous period / year

Reason for change more than 25%: ) ) , )
This ratio has Increased from 4.06 in March 2021 to (275.04) in March 2022 mainly due to increase in borrowings for capital

expenditure and reduction in equity due to losses incurred during the period.

This ratio has decreased from 16.91 in March 2020 to 4,06 in March 2021 mainly due to increase in equity as a result of fair valuation
gain on OCD recorded in equity during the year which is partially set off by increase in borrowings for capital expenditure and reduction
in equity due to losses incurred during the period.

¢) Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings available for debt services divided by Total interest and principal

repayments
Particulars For theyear Fortheyear For the year
91 March 91 March 31 March
e 2022 2021 2020
0 08§ er tax (39,300.43) .22 8,02
Add: Non cash operating expenses and finance cost ’ | sl
-gepreciation and amortizations 16,638.11 19,545.41 20,407.54
-Finance cost . . i ; ? '

: . 15,483.43 17,654.10 16,693.43
Earnings available for debt services (7,178.89) 37,1,52.29 [20,9’28.46)
Interest paid on borrowings
e 8 3%935-28 4,753.07 4,132.04

Total Interest and princi i st s
- principal repayments 44,910.72 77,024.41 16,652.69
% Change from previous period / year -13(:.:469: -133.5?88% s

Reason for change more than 25%:
This ratio has decreased from 0.48 in March 2021 to (0.16) i i

m 0. -16) in March 2022 mainl i i i i
reduced the earning available for debt service. R (TG IANERSimenc by o pesti il
This ratio has improved from (1.26) in March 2020 to 0.48 in March 2021 mainly due to repayment of loan taken from erstwhile

llO}d.lIlg company pursuant to takeover of the Colnpany by curre: hol ng com any d
nt d.l
g P ,an Slgl]lﬁcant lease habllltles a“d OlhEl llablhtles
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d) Return on Equity Ratio / Return on Investment Ratio = Net profit after tax divided by Equity

Particulars For the year Fortheyear For the year
31 March 31 March 31 March
2022 2021 2020
Net profit after tax (39,300.43) (47.22) (58,029.43)
Total equity (1,131.51) 37,709.58 6,201.96
Ratio Indeterminate (0.00) (9.22)
% Change from previous period / year Indeterminate -99.99%

Reason for change more than 25%:

This ratio has decreased from (0.00) in March 2021 to 'Indeterminate’ in March 2022 mainly due to exceptional write backs of lease and
other liabilities in other income in previous year which do not exist in current year.

This ratio has improved from (9.22) in March 2020 to (0.00) in March 2021 mainly due to significant lease liabilities and other
liabilities write backs during the year ended 31 March 2021 and fair valuation gain on OCD recorded in equity during the year.

e) Inventory Turnover Ratio = Cost of materials consumed divided by closing inventory

Particulars For theyear Fortheyear For the year
31 March 31 March 31 March
2022 2021 2020

Cost of materials consumed (Including purchase of traded goods and change in 138,844.60 52,079.48 53.545.86
inventories)

Closing Inventory 31,241.94 5,866.97 10,066.83
Inventory Turnover Ratio 4.44 9.03 5.32
% Change from previous period / year -50.79% 69.77%

Reason for change more than 25%:
This ratio has decreased from 9.03 in 31 March 2021 to 4.44 in 31 March 2022 mainly due to increase in closing stock due to a new

customer's requirement to whom sales majorly started in second half of the year.

This ratio has improved from 5.32 in March 2020 to 9.03 in March 2021 mainly due to significant amount of provision of for obsolete/
non moving inventory during the year ended 31 March 2021 which was not accrued in year ended 31 March 2020 as the same was
company's second year of operation.

f) Trade Receivables turnover ratio = Total Sales divided by Closing trade receivables

Particulars For the year For theyear For the year
31 March 31 March 31 March
2022 2021 2020
Total sales 220,758.12 126,886.46 101,398.81
Clo§ing trade receivables 5,028.83 6,821.91 6,042.67
Ratio 43.90 18.60 16.78
% Change from previous period / year 136.02% 10.84%

Reason for change more than 25%:

Th_is ‘ratio has increased from 18.60 in 31 March 2021 to 43.90 in 31 March 2022 mainly due to faster recovery of sales proceeds from its
existing as well as new customer.

g) Trade payables turnover ratio = Credit purchases divided by closing trade payables

Particulars Fortheyear Fortheyear For the year
31 March 31 March 31 March
2022 2021 2020
Totall purchases 162,027.36 52,211.63 62,303.89
Clo;mg trade payables 62,290.90 35,614.84 78,999.93
Ratio ) 2,60 1.47 0.79
% Change from previous period / year 77-43% 85.89%

Reason for change more than 25%:
This ratio has improved from 1.47 in 31 March 2021 to 2.60 in 31 March 2022 mainly due to significant amount of long term borrowing

(including OCD) taken during the year and towards end of preceding year which has resulted in better trade payable payments towards
year ended 31 March 2022.

'I:his rafio has improved frc_rm 0.79 in 31 March 2020 to 1.47 in 31 March 2021 mainly due to significant amount of long term borrowing
(including OCD) taken during the year which has resulted ineite trade payable payments towards year ended 31 March 2021,

CClL4R
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h) Net capital Turnover Ratio = Sales divided by Net Working capital whereas net working capital= current assets -

current liabilities

Particulars Fortheyear Fortheyear For the year
31 March 31 March 31 March

2022 2021 2020

Total sales 220,758.12 126,886.46 101,398.81

Net working capital (35,853.53) (44,616.59) (97,431.44)

Ratio (6.16) (2.84) (1.04)

% Change from previous period / year 116.50% 173.27%

Reason for change more than 25%:

This ratio has improved from (2.84) in 31 March 2021 to (6.16) in 31 March 2022 mainly due to increase in turnover due to a new

customer and reduction in current liabilities due to borrowing s during the year.

This ratio has improved from (1.04) in March 2020 to (2.84) in March 2021 mainly due to significant amount of long term borrowing
(including OCD) taken during the year which has resulted in better working capital availability towards year ended 31 March 2021.

i) Net profit ratio = Net profit after tax divided by Sales

Particulars For the year For theyear For the year
31 March 31 March 31 March
2022 2021 2020
Net profit after tax* (39,300.43) (47.22) (58,029.43)
Total Sales* 220,758.12 126,886.46 101,398.81
Ratio (0.18) (0.00) (0.57)
% Change from previous period / year 47741.71% -00.93%

Reason for change more than 25%:

This ratio has decreased from breakeven in March 2021 to (0.18) in March 2022 mainly due to significant lease liabilities and other
liabilities write backs during the previous year.

This ratio has improved from (0.57) in March 2020 to breakeven in March 2021 mainly due to significant lease liabilities and other
liabilities write backs during the year ended 31 March 2021 and fair valuation gain on OCD recorded in equity during the year,

J) Return on Capital employed (pre cash)=Earnings before interest and taxes(EBIT) divided by Capital Employed (pre
cash)

Particulars For the year For the year For the year
31 March 31 March 31 March
2022 2021 2020
Profit (loss) before tax* (A) (39,300.43) (47.22) (58,029.43)
Finance costs* (B) 5,935.08 4,753.07 4,132.04
Other income* (C) 7,234.66 46,540.68 4,144.22
EBIT (D) = (A)+(B)-~(C) (40,600.01) (41,834.83) (58,041.61)
Net worth (1,131.51) 37,709.58 6,291.96
Long term debt (including current maturities) 291,198.22 151,449.81 107,606.86
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (0,508.61) (1,200.15) (97.81)
Less: Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - (52,045.49) (68,939.37)
Cap'ita] Employed 280,468.10 135,004.75 44,861.64
Ratio (0.14) (0.31) (1.29)

% Change from previous period / year & -52.97% -76.21%

Reason for change more than 25%:

This ratio has improved from (0.31) in March 2021 to (0.14) in March 2022 mainly due to significant bank borrowings taken during the
year.

Th‘is ratio has ityproved from (1.29) in March 2020 to (0.31) in March 2021 mainly due to significant lease liabilities and other liabilities
write backs during the year, fair valuation gain on OCD recorded in equity during the year and new OCDs raised during the year.
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39 The Company has a net working capital deficit of Rs. (35,853.53) as of 31 March 2022 and net worth of the Company has also eroded.
These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Company's ability to continue
as going concern. However, the financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a going concern basis, since the Company is
incorporated during FY 2017-18 and the management believes the Company to be profitable in near future. Further, the Company has
also received a support letter from its Holding Company to provide financial support to continue as going concern. Accordingly, these
financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

40 Pursuant to amendment in Division II to Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013, 'Security deposits’ have been presented now under
‘other financial assets’ in place of loans' and 'current maturities of long term borrowings' have been presented now under 'short term
borrowings' in place of ‘other financial liabilities'. Further, pursuant to said amendments additional disclosure have been furnished for

current periods as well as comparatives.

41 Statement of reconciliation between opening and closing balances of balance sheet liabilities arising from financing
activities due to cash flow and non-cash changes:

Long term Borrowing Operating Optionally Interest Government
Borrowings  from related lease convertible accrued (on grants
(Other than parties liabilities debentures  borrowing)
related (Including and deferred
parties) not interest fees paid
considered as thereon)
cash and cash
equivalents
Balance as at 1 April 2020 37,500.00 70,921.48 147,397.24 - 681.65 21,348.00
Cash movements (2,822.22) (66,623.62) (29,308.70) 170,707.00 (4,753.07) 19,885.00
Non cash movements
Interest expense for the year - - 11,925.60 1,518.93 4,333.41 -
Government grant - s - - = (36,874.60)
capitalised
Lease liability reversal on - - (123,528.27) - & g
lease modification (set off
with Right of use assets)
Recognition of lease E - 6,772.26 - - -
liabilities
Lease liabilities written back - - (13,258.13) 2 = B
Value of call option on OCD - - - (28,052.15) - -
Fair valuation loss - - - (31,699. 61) B
considered as capital e )
contribution
s s BRITTTe AAPIH6 : 112,474.17 261.99  4,358.40
Cash movements 135,322.22 3 -
Non cash movements e e i (6,909.35) )
Interest expense for the year - - B
Deferred fees on borrowings (836.26) E - neng s i
Government grant : : i S25.36 -
capitalised : - - (4,358.40)
Closin
e g as at 31 March 169,163.74 & N 122,034.48 479.08 F
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42 Share based payment

The shareholder of Parent Company, during the year, approved Bikaji ESOP-I 2021 for granting Employee Stock Options in form of
equity shares linked to the completion of a minimum period of continued employment to the eligible employees of the Parent Company
and its subsidiaries. The employees can purchase equity shares by exercising the options as vested at the price specified in the grant. The
maximum number of share options will not exceed 50 lakhs. The option granted vest over a period of 2 years from the date of grant in
proportions specified in the respective ESOP Plans. Options may be exercised by the employee after vesting period within 7 years from
the date of Vest. The fair value as on the date of the grant of the options, representing Stock compensation charge, is expensed over the
vesting period.

Movement in share option during the year

Particulars For the year For the year
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Number of Weighted Number of Weighted
options average options average
(absolute) exercise (absolute) exercise
price (INR) price (INR)

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year - = s =
Options granted during the year 6,000 165 -
Options forfeited / lapsed during the year - - -
Options vested during the year - - -
Options exercised during the year - - - -
Options outstanding at the end of the year 6,000 165 - -
Options vested and exercisable - - - -

The fair value at grant date is determined using the Black- Scholes valuation method which takes into account the exercise price, the
term of the option, the share price at grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the average dividend yield and the
risk free interest rate for the term of the option. The following tables list the inputs used for fair valuation of options for the ESOP plans:

For the year  For the year
31 March 31 March

2022 2021
Grant date 07 January -

2022
Weighted average fair value of the options at the grant dates (INR) 115.68 -
Dividend vield (%) 0.91 -
Risk free interest rate (%) 5.78-6.08 -
Expected life of share options (years) 4.51-5.51 -
Expected volatility (%) 45.81-46.57 -
Weighted average share price (INR) 220.04 -
Weighted average remaining contractual life (days) 2,959 -
Exercise price 165.00 -

During the year , the Company recorded an employee stock compensation expense of 130.19 thousand (previous year Nil) in the
Statement of Profit and Loss with corresponding credit to Share based payment reserve (Parent Company ESOP) in other equity.
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